
1 
 

 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Special Meeting Agenda 
and Budget Workshop 

April 16, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
37. The Town Council will hear public comments on a CDBG application for Gelato Fiasco, 

and to adopt “A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance and Expenditure of Community 
Development Block Grant Funds for Projects Undertaken by Gelato Fiasco, Inc,”and will 
take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

PUBLIC HEARING/ACTION 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
38. The Town Council will consider adopting “A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance and 

Expenditure of Community Development Block Grant Funds for Projects to be 
Undertaken by Frosty’s Donuts, LLC,” and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)   

ACTION 
 
Recess the meeting to go into a workshop on the proposed municipal budget. 
 
Resume the meeting. 
 
Executive Sessions:  

a) Consultations with legal counsel regarding pending or contemplated litigation [1 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] and  

b) Labor Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
  



2 
 

Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda 

April 16, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
37. On March 2nd, the Town Council approved the Town submitting a Letter of Intent to the 

Department of Economic & Community Development (DECD) to apply for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for Gelato Fiasco. DECD sent the Town an 
invitation to apply on March 10, 2015 and on March 16, 2015, the Town Council set a 
Public Hearing for April 16, 2015. Gelato Fiasco is seeking a $350,000 CDBG Economic 
Development Program grant to assist them in increasing their production facility at 2 
Industry Road in Brunswick. The total project is for $1,440,000 for building construction 
and equipment purchases; the CDBG grant would support new equipment in the facility. 
As a part of its expansion, Gelato Fiasco commits to the creation of 15 new jobs, of which 
8 would need to go to Low Moderate Income (LMI) individuals.  The draft application 
and related narrative are in your packet. The action needed by the Town Council is to 
approve the Resolution, which is also in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt “A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance and Expenditure of 
Community Development Block Grant Funds for Projects Undertaken by Gelato Fiasco, 
Inc.” 

 
38. On March 29, 2014, the Town Council approved the Town Manager submitting a 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) application for $160,050 on behalf of 
Frosty’s Donuts, LLC to the Department of Economic and Community Development 
(DECD). The grant was approved by DECD and Frosty’s has been working to complete 
the leasehold improvements and equipment purchases at their production facility at 119 
Orion Street on Brunswick Landing. When DECD came to monitor in early March 2015, 
Frosty’s cross-training plans were discussed. DECD can support workforce development 
activities and suggested that Frosty’s submit a proposal outlining their workforce training 
needs. Frosty’s budget and training plan is attached. DECD is making a $100,000 contract 
amendment available, bringing the total contract to $260,050. Frosty’s has met its 
commitment to hire 7 Low Moderate Income (LMI) individuals based on the original 
$160,050 contract (DECD letter attached) and, according to recent emails from 
DECD,  has met the LMI requirement for the additional $100,000 as well.  The action 
needed by the Town Council is to approve the Resolution, which is in your packet.   

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt “A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance and Expenditure of 
Community Development Block Grant Funds for Projects to be Undertaken by Frosty’s 
Donuts, LLC.” 

 
Recess the meeting to go into a workshop on the proposed municipal budget. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to recess the meeting to go into a budget workshop. 

 



3 
 

Resume the meeting. 
 
Executive Sessions:  

a) Consultations with legal counsel regarding pending or contemplated litigation [1 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] and  

b) Labor Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to go into executive session for a Consultation with legal counsel regarding 
pending or contemplated litigation [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E)] and to discuss Labor 
Negotiations [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(D)] 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 



ITEM 37  
BACK-UP 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
28 FEDERAL STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-2418 

 
 

 
TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Brunswick Town Council Members 

FROM:   Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 

RE:   Gelato Fiasco CDBG Public Hearing on 4-16-2015 

DATE:  April 8, 2015 

On March 2, 2015, the Town Council approved the Town of Brunswick submitting a Letter of Intent (LOI) 
to the Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) on behalf of The Gelato Fiasco, 
Inc. requesting the opportunity to apply for $350,000 from the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Economic Development program to provide funding to support their production expansion in 
Brunswick. On March 10, 2015, DECD sent a letter inviting the Town to apply for the CDBG Economic 
Development Program grant on behalf of the company. On March 16, 2015, the Town Council agreed to 
set a Public Hearing for The Gelato Fiasco, Inc. application for the CDBG Economic Development 
Program grant.  

Joshua Davis and Bruno Tropeano opened The Gelato Fiasco, Inc. in Brunswick, Maine on August 7, 
2007. Their commitment to quality, fun and community created a successful business model. Starting with 
six employees and one retail store with production “in back”, today the business maintains its Flagship 
store in Brunswick, its Portland store, a production facility (the Flavor Foundry), and distribution to 47 
states in the U.S. They employ 38 FTE employees in the retail and production lines. Recently, Gelato 
Fiasco signed a contract with the Kroger Company to distribute their gelato through its 1,700 stores 
nation-wide. 

This moves the company to a new phase of production. Currently operating out of a 6,200 square foot 
facility on Industry Road, they are looking to increase to a total of 12,400 square feet of production space 
with new kitchen facilities at their current location.  They had initially explored an alternative location in 
Brunswick, but after further research, have determined that expanding at the 2 Industry Road location 
makes the best business sense. They also expect in increase their workforce by another 15 employees.  

Josh and Bruno are exemplary entrepreneurs, as witnessed by the numerous awards they’ve garnered, 
including the Small Business Administration’s Young Entrepreneur of 2014. The company has grown 
exponentially since its founding in 2007. That growth literally comes at a great cost as they face this major 
expansion. They are contract rich and cash flow poor, facing a potentially disproportionately large debt 
service to grow the business. Therefore, they are seeking a $350,000 CDBG as a part of a $1,440,000 
expansion effort. The expansion will support building construction costs and equipment purchases. The 
15 new employee positions will range from sales and marketing to production.      

The draft CDBG Application is in your packet for your reference. Josh Davis will be available at the April 
16, 2015 Public Hearing to answer any questions. 

Cc: John Eldridge, Town Manager, Town of Brunswick 
       Josh Davis & Bruno Tropeano, The Gelato Fiasco, Inc.        

www.brunswickme.org 
 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
TOWN COUNCIL  

 
A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance and Expenditure of Community 

Development Block Grant Funds for Projects Undertaken by Gelato Fiasco, Inc. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick wishes to apply to the Department of Economic and 
Community Development (“DECD”) for a Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) to 
carry out a community development program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning process required by Maine Law and the CDBG Program have been 
complied with, including participation in the planning process by low and moderate income 
families and individuals and the community has conducted at least one duly advertised public 
hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick is cognizant of the requirement that should the intended 
National Objective of the CDBG program not be met, all CDBG funds must be repaid to the 
State of Maine CDBG program; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Manager of the Town of Brunswick is 
authorized to: 
 
1) Submit an application for the following program(s) and dollar amount(s) within the State of 

Maine’s CDBG Program: 
 
Program: CDBG 2015 Economic Development Program   Amount: $350,000 
 
to the Department of Economic and Community Development on behalf of the Town of 
Brunswick, substantially in the form presented to this council; 

 
2) Make assurances on behalf of the Town of Brunswick as required as part of such 

applications, and 
 
3) Upon acceptance of said funds and any subsequent funds amendments to carry out the 

duties and responsibilities for implementing said program(s), consistent with the Charter of 
the Town of Brunswick and the laws and regulations governing planning and implementation 
of community development programs in the State of Maine. 

 
 
 
 
 
Date of Public Hearing: ________________ 
 
Adopted by Town Council: ________________           Municipal Seal 
 
 



STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

COVER SHEET AND CERTIFICATIONS 
Economic Development Program 

 
Please note that all information requested in this application must be included for the application to be 
considered complete.  Please refer to Page 8 for the Economic Development Program Application 
Package Requirements.  The Office of Community Development (OCD) will only process complete 
applications.  All materials submitted to OCD in connection with your EDP application shall become the 
property of OCD, unless otherwise requested and shall be retained or destroyed in accordance with 
OCD’s file retention policy. 
I.  APPLICANT MUNICIPALITY INFORMATION 
Municipality:                                                                 County: 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK                                                  CUMBERLAND 

Mailing Address:                                                            State:                         Zip Code+4: 
85 UNION STREET                                                        MAINE                        04011 

Manager/Contact Person:    JOHN ELDRIDGE                   E-Mail: jeldridge@brunswickme.org   
                                       Town Manager 
Phone:          207-725-6659                                           Fax: 207-725-6663  
Applicant Municipality DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #:  XXXXXXXXXX 
(visit www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html if business needs to obtain a number) 
II. APPLICANT BUSINESS INFORMATION 
Legal Name of Business:  
The Gelato Fiasco, Inc. 
Legal Address of Business where jobs will be created and/or retained:  
2 Industry Road 
Town/City:   Brunswick           State: ME            Zip Code:  04011    County:  CUMBERLAND 

Manager/Contact Person:      Joshua Davis, Treasurer 

Phone:          207-649-4002                           Fax:    866-811-9512 

Email:        josh@gelatofiasco.com           Website: http://www.gelatofiasco.com/  

Please check if you   Own  Lease  Rent 

Square Feet:    6,200 sf      Monthly Payment:   $$$$   Replaced by New Facility   Yes   No 
(A 3,100 sf footprint / 2 story expansion will be added to the existing 6,200 sf facility = total of 12,400 sf.) 
Federal Employer Identification Number:  XXXXXXXXXX (of applicant business) 

Applicant Business DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #: XXXXXXXXXXX 
(visit www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html if business needs to obtain a number) 
Is the Applicant Business currently in bankruptcy proceedings?                     Yes   No 
Has the Applicant Business or any owner of more than 20% of the Applicant Business been in 
bankruptcy proceedings in the last ten years?                                         Yes   No 
If the answer to either of the above is “Yes,” please give particulars, including the court location 
and docket # of the proceedings. 

Page 1 
 

mailto:jeldridge@brunswickme.org
http://www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html
mailto:josh@gelatofiasco.com
http://www.gelatofiasco.com/
http://www.nea.gov/grants/apply/DUNS.html


 
Type of Entity:      C Corp       S Corp        Sole Proprietorship     Partnership   
                       Limited Liability Company (list “type”):                  Other (list): 
 
State of Organization: MAINE 

III.  BUSINESS OWNERSHIP  

Name and Title:      Joshua Davis 

% of Ownership:        XX% 

Legal Address:      XXXXXX 

Annual Compensation:     $$$$$ 

 
Name and Title:      Bruno Tropeano 

% of Ownership:       XX% 

Legal Address:        :      XXXXXXX 

Annual Compensation:        $$$$$ 

IV.  PROPOSED SOURCES AND USES OF FINANCING 
Sources:                     Amount: Uses: Amount: 

 Private Investor $  940,000 Building Expansion & 
Equipment 

$  940,000 

Owner Cash 
Contribution 

$  150,000 Equipment $  150,000 

CDBG $  350,000 Equipment $  350,000 

Other (Specify) 
 

$   N/A  $   - 

Total Project Cost $1,440,000.00 Total Project Cost $1,440,000.00 

 

 
V.  PROPOSED COLLATERAL  
Available to secure job creation or job retention connected with the grant of CDBG 
funds in the event DECD elects to secure such requirement/repayment with assets of 
the Applicant business for a term of up to five years; to secure CDBG Economic 
Development Program Funds  

 Page 2 
 



 
Type/ 

Description Existing Lienholder  Outstanding 
Balance Available Collateral 

2 industry Road bldg XXXXXX XXXX XXXX 

Existing Equipment XXXXXX XXXX XXXX 

Other    

    
 

VI.  SUMMARY OF BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT AND BENEFITS 
Current Employment:               Full-Time # _38 FTEs_____    Part-Time# ____10______ 
 
Projected Employment Increases Over Next 12 Months: 
                                               Full-Time # ___15_____        Part-Time #_____0_____ 
 
Minimum Starting Hourly Wage:  Full-Time $ __10.00__  Part-Time $ __N/A_______ 
 
In determining CDBG National Objective compliance with job creation/retention only Permanent jobs may be counted; temporary 
jobs may not.  Full time jobs require a worker to work at least 1750 hours per year.  Part time jobs require a worker to work at 
least 875 hours but less than 1750 hours per year.  Part-time jobs must be converted to Full Time Equivalents (FTE).  A FTE is 
defined as two part time jobs.  Seasonal jobs may count only if the seasonal job lasts long enough and provides sufficient income 
to be considered the employee's principal occupation.  (Contact OCD prior to counting seasonal jobs towards LMI benefit.)  All 
permanent jobs created by the project must be counted, regardless of funding source(s).  Jobs indirectly created by the project 
(i.e., remote location, “trickle down” jobs) do not count.  
 
Number of positions to be created as part of this development project by job classification 
identifiers: 
 

1.  Managerial/Officer __1_   2. Professional  _0__   3.  Technical  _1___  4.  Sales  __1__    
5.  Clerical/Office   _1__  6. Craftworker _1__  7.  Operatives  __8__  8.  Laborer __1__ 
9.  Service Worker _1__ 
 

Occupation/ 
Job Title 

Hire 
Date 

# of 
Jobs 

Annual 
Earnings 

Total 
Payroll 

Buyer (Officials & Managers) June 2015 1 $26,000 $31,200 
Quality Control Lab Manager 
(Technicians) 

June 2015 1 $27,040 $32,240 

Accounts Payable Clerk (Office & 
Clerical) 

June 2015 1 $27,040 $32,240 

Master Gelato Maker (Crafts 
Worker) 

May 2015 1 $31,200 $36,400 

Gelato Maker (Operatives) May 2015 8 $26,520 
(X 8 $212,160) 

$30,680 
(x 8 = $245,440) 

Dish Washer (Laborer) May 2015 1 $20,800 $24,960 
Janitor (Service Worker) May 2015 1 $22,800 $27,040 
Inside Sales Rep (Sales) July 2015 1 $24,960 $29,120 

 
 

 Page 3 
 



 
F/T Workers Benefits (check if applicable) 

 Paid Holidays    Paid Sick Days       Retirement/Profit Sharing       Life Insurance  
 Paid Vacation    Health Insurance   Dental Insurance     Child Care                                  

 
Health Insurance for Employees:  % of Employee Benefits _10% for P/T and 40% for FT 
 
VII.  SUMMARY OF BUSINESS EMPLOYMENT AND BENEFITS (continued) 

Type of Investment Description Cost 
Employee Training On-the-job training $2,500 x 15 = $37,500 

(minimum)      
Other:  $ 
VIII. DISCLOSURE  
Check the public purpose (all that apply) that will be met through CDBG support of this 
development project: 

 Job Creation  Capital Investment                  Other (list): 
 Job Retention  Training Investment 
 Tax Base Improvement  Public Facilities Improvement 

Check whether applicant is current on all taxes owed the State of Maine:  Yes  No  
If no, please explain and itemize any and all deficiencies. 
IX. CERTIFICATION BY AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL OF MUNICIPALITY AND BUSINESS 
 
1.  State Certifications 

a.  To the best of my knowledge and belief, the information in this Application is true and correct: 
b.  the governing body of the applicant has duly endorsed the document; 
c.   the proposed project has been reviewed and it complies with the Community's comprehensive plan 
and/or applicable state and local land use requirements;  
d. will work with the Office of Community Development to develop a detailed project if it receives a conditional 
award; and 
e. will comply with all applicable State laws and regulations. 

  
2.  Federal Certifications 

a. will take actions to affirmatively further fair housing and implement CDBG activities in compliance with Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of l964 and Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968; 
b. will not attempt to recover capital costs for the construction of public improvements, assisted in whole or in 
part with CDBG funds, by charging special assessments or fees against properties owned and occupied by 
persons of low and moderate income, including any fee, charge or assessment made as a condition of 
obtaining access to such public improvements, unless: 

(i) CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of such fee or assessment that relates to the capital 
costs of such public improvements that are financed from revenue sources other than CDBG funds; 
or 
(ii) for purposes of assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by persons of low 
and moderate income who are not persons of very low income, and the applicant certifies that it lacks 
sufficient CDBG funds to comply with the requirements of clause (i) above. 

c. prior to expenditure of CDBG funds, it will establish a local community development plan that identifies the 
Community's housing and community development needs, including the needs of low and moderate income, 
and the activities to be undertaken to meet them; 
d. will provide in a timely manner for citizen participation, public hearings, and access to information with 
respect to the Maine CDBG Program and the proposed local CDBG project/program.  Indicate in public 
notices and at public hearings that the State program is competitive, the maximum grant amount that can be 
requested, and the general type of activities contained in the proposed local program.  Also announce in 
public notices the availability of the local program plan/application, describe the Community's previous CDBG 
performance (if any), and how the Community will collect, consider and maintain all oral and written 

 Page 4 
 



 
comments received on the proposal; 
e. will adopt and follow a residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan which complies with 
Section 104 (d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, that at a minimum 
provides for the replacement of all low/moderate income dwelling units that are demolished or converted to a 
non-LMI housing use as a direct result of CDBG assistance, and a relocation assistance component; 
f. is not listed on U. S. Dept of Labor’s Debarred and Suspended Contractor’s List and will not employ 
contractors or subcontractors on this list;   
g. will comply with the requirements of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121 regarding government-wide 
restrictions on lobbying; and 
h. with the exception of administrative or personnel costs, it will verify that no person who is an employee, 
agent, consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of state or local government or of any 
designated public agencies, or subrecipients which are receiving CDBG funding may obtain a financial 
interest or benefit, have an interest in or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract, 
subcontract or agreement with respect to CDBG activities. 
i. Jobs created/retained must be in the community applying for the EDP award, new jobs to that community 
and not associated with any other branches of the assisted business located in another community.   
j. Transfer positions cannot be counted toward the job creation/retention requirements. 
k. All projects must document that at a minimum, 51% of all jobs created or retained as a result of the funded 
activity must be taken/held by persons of low and moderate income as defined by HUD. 
l. The Federal Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibits creditors from discriminating against credit applications 
on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, marital status, age (provided that the applicant has 
the capacity to enter into a binding contract); and because all or parts of the applicant’s income is derived 
from any public assistance program; or because the applicant has, in good faith, exercised any rights under 
the Consumer Credit Protect Act.  The federal agency that administers compliance with this law concerning 
this creditor is the Federal Trade Commission.  If a person believes that he or she was denied assistance in 
violation of this law, they should contact the Federal Trade Commission, Washington DC 20580. 
m. I/We understand that by signing this application I/We authorize the Maine Office of Community 
Development (OCD) to make inquiries as needed to verify the accuracy of the information and to determine 
creditworthiness.  I/We certify the information is true and accurate and is provided for the purpose of 
obtaining a grant and/or loan.  OCD will maintain the confidentiality of this information and it will not be 
released without authorization.  

 
3.       CDBG Program Certifications.   

The Municipality certifies that (1) it is capable of investigating  the Applicant Business and the  proposed 
Development Project to determine that the job creation and/or job retention requirements can be met, (2) it  
has investigated the Applicant Business and the proposed Development Project and determined that the job 
creation and/or job retention requirements can be met, (3) the EDP assistance to the Applicant Business is 
for a Development Project that is necessary and appropriate, (4) the EDP assistance to be provided is 
commensurate with the community benefits that will accrue from the Development Project, and (5) the 
Municipality will comply with the documentation requirements for jobs created and/or jobs retained. 

 
4.        Liabilities:   

 The borrower has no liabilities except as contemplated by this grant and/or loan agreement and fully 
disclosed in the borrower’s financial records as presented to the Government (in your case, DECD).  Such 
financial records are true and correct.  No data was withheld and no material adverse change in the 
borrower’s financial position has occurred which would adversely effect such statements.  The borrower’s 
assets are not less than its liabilities as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and the borrower is solvent. 

 
5. Litigation and Taxes:   

There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the borrower, threatened against or 
affecting the borrower at law or in equity before any court or administrative officer or agency which might result in any 
material adverse change in the business or financial condition of the borrower.  The borrower is not in default (a) in 
the payment of any taxes levied or assessed against it or any of its assets or (b) under an applicable statute, rule, 
order, decree, writ, injunction or regulation of any governmental body (including any court). 
 
 
 

 Page 5 
 



 
Signature of Municipal Official: 
 
 

Name: 
JOHN ELDRIDGE 

Date: 
 
 

Title: 
TOWN MANAGER 

  
Signature of Business Representative(s): 
 
 

Name: 
JOSHUA DAVIS, TREASURER 
 

Date: 
 
 

Title: 
CO-OWNER 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 6 
 



 
 

               STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application 

 
 

COMMUNITY BENEFIT WORKSHEET 
 

 
Local Fiscal Improvement: 
 
What percent of value to the total value is the municipal assessment?  ___70___% 
 
1.  Assessed value of land prior to improvements      $___40,400___ 
        
2.  Assessed value of buildings prior to improvements             $__194,700___ 
 
3.  Total assessed value (1+2)          $__235,100___ 
       
4.  Estimated total assessed value following improvements   $__835,100___ 
 
5.  Estimated tax based on #4      $_   _22,882__ 
 
6.  Current tax        $ ____6,442__      
 
7.  Anticipated net tax increase (#5 - #6)     $___ 16,440__ 
 
The above figures were obtained through (check all that are applicable): 
 
 
 Town Records 
  
 Assessments  
 
□       Appraisals  
  
□       Other    

 

 Page 7 
 



 
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application  

 
NOT APPLICABLE 

 
EDP PROJECTS IN SUPPORT OF RETAIL BUSINESSES 

 
 

OCD may accept an EDP application in support of a retail business activity only under the 
following limited conditions: 
 
 
(1.)  The retail business represents the provisions of new products and services previously 
unavailable in the community or is a tourism-related business; and 
 
(2.) The development or expansion of the retail business represents a net economic gain 
for the community and the region.  Applications supporting a retail business or businesses 
are required to certify that the development represents a new overall gain for the region 
economy and not a shift from existing established businesses to a new or expanded one; and 
 
(3.) The retail business is located in either a downtown district meeting the definition of 
Public Law 776 enacted by the 119th legislature; or a designated local growth area contained 
in an adopted and consistent comprehensive plan; and  
 
(4.) At least 50% of the jobs created by the retail business must be full-time jobs. 
 
                           
Signature of Municipal Official: 
 
 

Name: 
 

Date: 
 
 

Title: 
 

  
Signature of Business Representative: 
 
 

Name: 
 

Date: 
 
 

Title: 
 

 
   
  

 Page 8 
 



 
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application  

 
GRANTEE/BUSINESS ASSURANCES - JOB CREATION 

 
The Business (as identified below), having applied for funding from the Municipality (as identified 
below) through the Maine Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program agrees to create a 
minimum of ___15___ new jobs above the employment baseline within a 12 month period from time 
of CDBG EDP application the deadline date for which will be stated in the CDBG contract between the 
Municipality and the State of Maine.  The Business also agrees that at least 51% of the new full-time 
and full-time equivalent jobs must be taken by qualified low-to-moderate income (LMI) persons in 
compliance with the Maine CDBG program rules, regulations and policies. The Business will verify the 
job creation achievements and assist the Municipality in compiling the appropriate documentation as 
required by the Maine CDBG Program. 

 
In determining CDBG National Objective compliance with job creation only Permanent jobs may be 
counted; temporary jobs may not.  Full-time jobs require a worker to work at least 1750 hours per 
year.  Part-time jobs require a worker to work at least 875 hours but less than 1750 hours per year.  
Part-time jobs must be converted to Full-Time Equivalents (FTE).  An FTE is defined as two part time 
jobs.  Seasonal jobs may count only if the seasonal job lasts long enough and provides sufficient 
income to be considered the employee's principal occupation.  (Contact OCD prior to counting 
seasonal jobs towards LMI benefit.)  All permanent jobs created by the project must be counted, 
regardless of funding source(s).  Jobs indirectly created by the project (i.e., remote location, “trickle 
down” jobs) do not count. 
 
It is understood by the Business and the Municipality that, in the event the job creation goals 
are not met within the prescribed time frame and according to the regulations of the State of 
Maine Community Development Block Grant Program, the State of Maine will exercise its right 
and seek repayment from the Municipality in accordance with the contract provisions and the 
Municipality may exercise its rights and seek repayment in accordance with the default 
provisions contained in any agreement it may have with the Business.   
 
Having read and fully understanding the requirements set forth in this agreement, the undersigned 
agree to the job creation requirements contained herein, and to comply with all regulations of the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development and the State of Maine governing this program 
including submission of quarterly status reports regarding job creation benefit. 
                           
Signature of Municipal Official: Name: 

JOHN ELDRIGE 

Date: 
 

Title: 
TOWN MANAGER 

Signature of Business Representative(s): 
 
 

Name: 
JOSHUA DAVIS, TREASURER 
 

Date: 
 

Title: 
CO-OWNER 

 Page 9 
 



 
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT  
Economic Development Program Application  

JOB CREATION BASELINE EMPLOYMENT SUMMARY 
 

Name of Business to be Assisted: The Gelato Fiasco, Inc. 

* Attach a job description for each job title for which a position will be created and use the attached job 
category definition numbers outlined in Appendix B of this application to indicate job class.   

 
        __________________________ 
Signature of Human Resources Officer   Date 
 
       
Printed Name and Title 
 

Job Title* 
Job 

Class* 

Full 
Time 

(Place X) 

Part 
Time 

(Place X) 

# Currently 
Employed 

# to be 
Created 

Base 
Wage 

($) 

Fringe 
Benefits 
($/ value) 

Buyer  1 X 0 0 1 $12.00 $15.00 

Quality Control Lab 
Manager  

3 X 0 0 1 $13.00 $15.50 

Accounts Payable 
Clerk  

5 X 0 0 1 $13.00 $15.50 

Master Gelato 
Maker 

6 X 0 2 1 $15.00 $17.50 

Gelato Maker  7 X X (4) 12 8 $12.75 $14.75 

Dish Washer  8 X 0 1 1 $10.00 $12.00 

Janitor 9 X 0 1 1 $11.00 $13.00 

Inside Sales Rep  4 X 0 0 1 $12.00 $14.00 

Business Manager 1   1  $15.00 $17.00 

Marketing Director 2   1  $18.00 $20.00 

Plant Manager 1   1  $22.00 $24.00 

Delivery Driver 7   2  $15.00 $17.00 

Prep Chef 6   1  $12.50 $14.50 

Fruit Prep 7   2  $11.50 $13.50 

Regional Sales Rep 4   1  $15.00 $17.00 

VP Sales 4   1  $25.00 $30.00 

Director of 
Perfection 

3   1  $20.00 $22.00 

Retail sales 9  X (6) 10  $10.00 $12.00 

 Page 10 
 



 
Job Descriptions 
 
Mission Title: Buyer 
Location: Office in Brunswick, Maine 
Salary: $12.50 per hour 
Reports to: Business Manager 
 
We make our desserts from scratch, and as we grow, that commitment to quality requires well managed 
purchasing and inventory. This position will require you to be the point of contact between suppliers and 
production. You’ll need a keen eye for numbers, making sure that our Flavor Foundry has the ingredients 
and supplies it needs. You’ll negotiate with suppliers to find agreeable pricing, preparation, and delivery 
terms, and make sure that ingredients meet our standards. 
 
This is a fulltime position, weekdays. While mostly based at our office, the position may require travel to 
visit suppliers or between our facilities. 
 
Responsibilities: 

• Coordinates purchasing of ingredients and supplies. 
• Manages inventory. 
• Works closely with production manager to ensure efficient use of supplies. 
• Negotiates with suppliers for best pricing and terms. 
• Cultivates relationships with new and novel suppliers, especially small and local producers. 
• Supports adherence to Gelato Fiasco’s ingredient quality standards. 

 
Requirements: 

• Strong organizational skills. 
• Interest in high quality foods and producers. 
• Must have good math skills and ability to use Windows and Mac computers to maintain 

spreadsheets and databases. 
• Strong desire to create the highest quality products with attention to detail. 
• Point of emphasis: You must have a team-oriented mindset. 
• Ability to communicate calmly and effectively with coworkers and external partners in a fast paced 

environment. 
• Valid driver’s license is required, as you may need to visit suppliers or move supplies in a pinch. 
• Must be able to lift 50 pounds. 

 
Mission Title: Quality Control Lab Manager 
Location: Flavor Foundry in Brunswick, Maine 
Salary: $13 per hour 
Reports to: Business Manager 
 
Gelato Fiasco seeks a dedicated quality control lab manager. You’ll use laboratory testing to perform food 
safety tests on our desserts and equipment. You will also review product quality and be a resource for 
colleague’s questions about food safety and quality. 
 
Responsibilities: 

• Performs food safety tests in accordance with applicable laws and best practices. 
• Performs quality control tests, including tests using sight, taste, and smell, to ensure that desserts 

meet ingredient and recipe standards. 

 Page 11 
 



 
• Performs quality control monitoring to ensure that packaging materials are correct and used 

correctly. 
• Authorizes hold/stop processes when product does not comply with specifications. 
• Manages storage of products for historical testing. 
• Coordinate with applicable food licensing agencies for proper permits. 
• Assists with management of batch and ingredient tracking systems, and regularly uses these 

systems for logging. 
• Performs checks of operations areas to ensure sanitary, quality, process integrity, and physical 

security standards are being met. 
• Maintains and calibrates laboratory equipment. 

 
Requirements: 

• High school diploma with 2 years lab experience. An associate’s degree or higher in food science, 
microbiology, chemistry, phlebotomy, or a related field is preferred. 

• Experience with HACCP standards preferred. 
• Strong organizational and recordkeeping skills. 
• Dedication to food safety and quality. 
• Point of emphasis: You must have a team-oriented mindset. 
• Ability to communicate calmly and effectively with coworkers in a fast paced environment where 

you may be the deliverer of “bad news.” 
• Ability to taste gelato (dairy) and sorbetto flavors several times per day. 
• Ability to work irregular or rotating hours to match production shifts. 
• Ability to lift 50 pounds routinely. 

 
Mission Title: Accounts Payable Clerk 
Location: Office in Brunswick, Maine 
Salary: $13 per hour 
Reports to: Business Manager 
 
The accounts payable clerk compiles and maintains accounts payable records at our office. 
 
This is a fulltime position, weekdays. It has no supervisory responsibilities. 
 
Responsibilities: 

• Reviews all invoices for appropriate documentation and approval prior to payment. 
• Prints and obtains signatures on all accounts payable checks. 
• Distributes signed checks as required. 
• Prepares garnishment checks per reports from payroll. 
• Acts as liaison between office and other departments. 
• Answers all vendor inquiries. 
• Maintains all accounts payable reports, spreadsheets and corporate accounts payable files. 
• Assists corporate financial officers and other personnel as necessary. 
• Prepares cleared checks for storage. 
• Assists in monthly closings. 
• Prepares analysis of accounts, as required. 
• Performs filing and copying. 
• Assists with telephone and office reception duties, as required. 

 
 

 Page 12 
 



 
Requirements: 

• High school diploma with minimum two years prior experience. 
• Must have strong math skills and ability to use Windows and Mac computers to maintain 

spreadsheets and databases. Knowledge of Quickbooks is preferred. 
• Point of emphasis: You must have a team-oriented mindset. 
• Ability to communicate calmly and effectively with coworkers and external partners in a fast paced 
• environment. 

 
Mission Title: Master Gelato Maker 
Location: Flavor Foundry in Brunswick, Maine 
Compensation: $15/hour 
 
The master gelato maker leads the creation of gelato by carefully following recipes and directing the efforts 
of helpers to complete each production process according to established quality control standards. Training 
specific to gelato creation will be provided. Daily work may involve making batches of gelato by utilizing 
Gelato Fiasco’s famous recipes, preparing ingredients, packing gelato in pints, cleaning, attaching labels for 
packaging, and organizing inventory and shipments, and directing staff to do the same. This is a 
supervisory position. 
 
Responsibilities: 

• Ability to follow and lead others in following established recipes to exact standards. 
• Prepare ingredients necessary for gelato creation, including fruits, nuts, and confections. 
• Properly pack pints according to exact standards. 
• Lead and teach other team members. 
• Meet quantity and quality targets for daily production. 
• Work with production manager, laboratory technician, and others to achieve 100% adherence to 

quality and safety standards. 
 
Requirements: 

• A proven track record of creating consistent and high quality products in an efficient, deadline 
driven environment is required. 

• A commitment to always producing the highest quality products, with 100% adherence to quality 
and safety standards. 

• Experience following food safety and sanitation policies is preferred. If you do not already have 
ServSafe or similar certification, training to achieve certification may be provided. 

• Experience supervising other team members is preferred. 
• Ability to communicate calmly and effectively with coworkers in a fast paced environment, 

directing and inspiring them to do good work. 
• Point of emphasis: You must have a team-oriented mindset. 
• Strong desire to create the highest quality products with attention to detail. 
• Neat freaks and people who might be compulsive about cleaning are encouraged to apply. 
• Must be able to lift 50 pounds. 

 
Mission Title: Gelato Maker 
Location: Flavor Foundry in Brunswick, Maine 
Compensation: $12.75/hour 
 
We make our gelato and sorbetto from scratch, and we need committed team members to help create gelato 
pints at our Flavor Foundry in Brunswick. Training specific to gelato creation will be provided. Daily work 

 Page 13 
 



 
may involve making batches of gelato by utilizing Gelato Fiasco’s famous recipes, preparing ingredients, 
packing gelato in pints, cleaning, attaching labels for packaging, and organizing inventory and shipments. 
 
Responsibilities: 

• Ability to follow your shift’s master gelato maker in following established recipes to exact 
standards. 

• Prepare ingredients necessary for gelato creation, including fruits, nuts, and confections. 
• Properly pack pints according to exact standards. 
• Meet quantity and quality targets for daily production. 

 
Requirements: 

• A proven track record of creating consistent and high quality products in an efficient, deadline 
driven environment is required. We have found that successful candidates have had experience 
working in bakeries, breweries, assembly lines, or other places where following a recipe, working 
as part of a team, and being able to repeat something perfectly more than 100 times with absolute 
perfection is commonplace. Trust us, this ain’t for everyone — but for the right person, you will 
thrive here! 

• Ability to communicate calmly and effectively with coworkers in a fast paced environment. 
• Point of emphasis: You must have a team-oriented mindset. 
• Strong desire to create the highest quality products with attention to detail. 
• Neat freaks and people who might be compulsive about cleaning are encouraged to apply. 
• Must be able to lift 50 pounds. 
• Must be at least 18 years of age. 

 
Mission Title: Dishwasher 
Location: Flavor Foundry in Brunswick, Maine 
Compensation: $10/hour 
 
Gelato Fiasco creates pints of gelato and sorbetto sold in grocery stores across the United States. The 
dishwasher will operate the dishroom at our production facility. This is an entry level position that may 
lead to a gelato maker position for interested candidates. 
 
Responsibilities: 

• Clean dishes, utensils, and production equipment. 
• Operate dishwashing equipment. 
• Organize and store clean dishes and utensils. 
• Conduct regular checks of dishwashing equipment. 

 
Requirements: 

• This is an entry level position. A determination to work quickly and carefully in a busy 
• production requirement is required. 
• Ability to communicate calmly and effectively with coworkers. 
• Point of emphasis: You must have a team-oriented mindset. 
• Strong desire to create the highest quality products with attention to detail. 
• Neat freaks and people who might be compulsive about cleaning are encouraged to apply. 
• Must be able to lift 50 pounds. 
• Must be at least 18 years of age. 

 
 

 Page 14 
 



 
Mission Title: Janitor 
Location: Flavor Foundry 
Compensation: $11/hour 
 
Gelato Fiasco seeks a responsible, hardworking custodian for our Flavor Foundry near Water 
Street in Brunswick. You’ll be responsible for daily cleaning of our production space, equipment, offices, 
and storage space, along with scheduled cleaning projects and maintenance of the property surrounding the 
facility. This is an opportunity to be an important part of the team for a stable, growing company that 
values teamwork and a positive employee culture. 
 
Minimum Requirements: 

• Demonstrated experience in a custodial, janitorial, housekeeping, or other capacity is preferred. In 
lieu of direct experience, a history of self directed, detail oriented work can be substituted. 

• Tendency to like to keep things sparkling clean and sanitary. 
• Must be responsible and focused to get the job done without constant supervision. 
• Flexibility to change plans in the face of sudden changes in the production schedule or guest tours. 
• Ability to lift 50 pounds. 
• Clean and professional appearance. 

 
Anticipated Daily Responsibilities: 

• Clean office area and break room daily. 
• Clean bathrooms daily. 
• Sweep and tidy receiving and warehouse area daily; return tools to their places; break down boxes 

and bring boxes and trash to outdoor recycling space. 
• Sweep and tidy walk-in freezers daily; sanitize on schedule. 
• Complete a “deep cleaning” task in kitchen daily to align with cleaning calendar created by 

production manager. 
• Tidy recycling area and outdoor workspaces daily. 
• Tidy and clean storage building weekly. 
• Mow, landscape, and tidy grass and driveways as needed. 
• Flexibility to adjust order of tasks daily to align with production requirements. 

 
Mission Title: Inside Sales Representative 
Location: Office in Brunswick, Maine 
Compensation: $12/hour 
 
Gelato Fiasco’s desserts are available in grocery stores across the United States. In this sales position, you 
will coordinate sales received via email, telephone, and EDI. 
 
Responsibilities: 

• Manage traffic for incoming sales received via email, telephone, and EDI. 
• Coordinates with vice president of sales to contact customers. 
• Assist outside sales team with notifying customers of seasonal and product line changes. 
• Coordinates promotional discounts and deductions. 
• Assists vice president of sales and sales managers with logistical projects, such as completing new 

item documentation and coordinating our nationwide distribution network. 
• Works with production manager, business manager, accounts payable clerk, delivery staff, and 

others to ensure that product deliveries are made on time and correctly. 
 

 Page 15 
 



 
Requirements: 

• Sales experience and a sense of good sales strategies. (Experience can be in retail, food service, 
B2B, or other.) 

• Strong telephone and email skills to support customer satisfaction and Gelato Fiasco’s legendary 
customer service. 

• A glass half full outlook that supports Gelato Fiasco’s values and commitment that gelato, at its 
core, is a fun product. 

• Ability to be flexible in the face of the challenges of a fast paced, small batch production 
environment. 

• Ability to communicate calmly and effectively with coworkers in a fast paced environment. 
• Point of emphasis: You must have a team-oriented mindset. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 16 
 



 
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application 

 
Matching Funds Table 

(Include Fully Secured Cash Commitments Only) 
 
                    

Funding Source Grant/Loan Amount Terms of borrowing 
or bond sale 

Financial Institution Loan $940,000 Rate & term TBD 
Gelato Fiasco  Equity $150,000 N/A 
CDBG Grant $350,000 N/A 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 TOTAL: $ 1,440,000  
 

Letters of Commitment for all Matching Funds listed must be attached to this table. 
 
 

Submit a copy of this Matching Funds Table and all letters of 
commitment with the original and all four copies of the application. 

 Page 17 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INSERT LETTERS OF COMMITMENT HERE 
 

 Page 18 
 



 
 
 

STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application  

 
 Budget Summary (Include All Sources) 

 

Directions for Completing Budget Summary 
 

For each applicable cost in the Cost Category column, list the projected dollar 
amount for all applicable funding sources in columns 1-6. 
List the total dollar amount for each cost category in column 7, Total 
Enter the sum of all Totals in column 7 in the TOTAL COSTS box directly under 
column 7. 
Submit a copy of this Summary with the original and the four copies of the 
application. 

 
 
 

 
Cost Category 

 
 

Column 
1 
 

CDBG 

Column 
2 
 

Private 

Column 
3 
 

Owner 

Column 
4 
 
 

Column 
5 
 
 

Column 
6 
 
 

Column 
7 
 

Total 

Acquisition (if allowable)        

Clearance/Demolition        

Site Improvements        

New Building Construction  935,000     935,000 

Building Renovations        

Water/Sewer 
Improvements/Drainage 

       

Lighting        

Roads & Streets        

Parking        

Utility Lines/Fiber Optics        

Rail Lines & Spurs        

Equipment 350,000 5,000 150,000    505,000 

Inventory        

Fixtures        

Working Capital        

Professional Fees        

Legal Expenses        

Inspection        

Architectural/Engineering        

Other (List)           

1.        

TOTAL COSTS 350,000 940,000 150,000    1,440,000 

 Page 19 
 



 
 
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application  

 

CONSUMER CREDIT AUTHORIZATION 
 
  
 You have submitted a request to the Department of Economic and Community 
Development (DECD) to provide financing through the Office of Community Development 
administered Community Development Block Grant Program. 
 
 The DECD designee’s procedure for reviewing this kind of request include the 
purchase and review of credit reports, which include information on both the Business, and 
primary principals of businesses.  A primary principal is any person having an ownership 
interest in the company of twenty percent (20%) or more.  Prior to ordering these reports the 
DECD must have written permission from each primary principal.  Please sign below 
acknowledging notification of the DECD’s intent to order consumer credit information in the 
Business and/or your name and providing your permission to do so. 
 
 The DECD will not proceed with review of the financing request without these reports.  
Therefore, this form must be signed by all applicable individuals and included with your 
application. 
 
 Thank you in advance for your cooperation. 
 
 
The undersigned acknowledges the above and gives permission to DECD and/or its 
designee to acquire any consumer credit information or reports it requires in 
connection with the above referenced application for financing assistance. 
 
 
Signature(s): 
 
 

Printed Name(s): 
Joshua Davis 
Bruno Tropeano 

Title: 
CO-OWNERS 
 

Date: 
 

Ownership Percentage: 
Joshua Davis: XX % 
Bruno Tropeano: XX % 
 

Social Security Number(s): 
Joshua Davis: XXX-XX-XXXX 
Bruno Tropeano: XXX-XX-XXXX 
 

 
 Page 20 

 



 
 
    
STATE OF MAINE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application  

 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY STATEMENT 

(not required for municipally owned projects) 
 

Provide the following information on the current obligation of the Business to be 
assisted for the following: 

 
 

Current Debt 
 

Debt Holder 
 

Rate/Term 
 

Payment 
 

Collateral 

 
$$$$$$ 

 
XXXXX 

 
XXXX 

 
XXXX 

 
XXXXX 

     

     

     

 
 

Proposed new obligations of the Business after EDP assistance: 
 
 

 
Proposed 

Debt 

 
Debt Holder 

 
Rate/Term 

 
Payment 

 
Collateral 

 
$940,000 

 
Bank 

 
TBD 

 
TBD 

 
Building 

 
$350,000 

 
CDBG 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
Equipment 

     

     

 
 

 Page 21 
 



 
 

     STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application  

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 

The Town of Brunswick 
 
The Town of Brunswick will hold a Public Hearing on Thursday, April 16, 2015 at 7:00 P.M. in 
the Town Council Chambers, 85 Union Street, to discuss an application being submitted to 
the State of Maine CDBG program for an Economic Development Program grant. The 
purpose of the request is to provide funding for The Gelato Fiasco, Inc. to purchase 
equipment and expand its production facility at 2 Industry Road, Brunswick, Maine. Public 
comments will be solicited at this Hearing and will be submitted as part of the application’s 
required documentation. 
 
All persons wishing to make comments or ask questions about the proposal are invited to 
attend this Public Hearing.  A copy of the application is available for review at the Town 
Clerk’s Office during normal business hours (Monday to Friday, 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM).  
Comments may be submitted in writing to: Linda Smith, 85 Union Street, Brunswick, Maine 
04011 at any time prior to the Public Hearing.  TDD/TTY users may call 771. If you are 
physically unable to access any of the Town’s programs or services, please call Linda Smith 
at 721-0292, so that accommodations can be made.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Attested copy of the Town Council May 29, 2014 Minutes with List 
of Public Hearing attendees will be submitted to DECD-OCD by mid June 
2014 
 
 
 
 
 

 Page 22 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 

     STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application  

 
 

INSERT COPY OF PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE FROM NEWSPAPER HERE 
 
 
 

 Page 23 
 



 
 

STATE OF MAINE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
Economic Development Program Application 

 
Town of Brunswick, Maine 

TOWN COUNCIL  
 

A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance and Expenditure of Community Development 
Block Grant Funds for Projects Undertaken by Gelato Fiasco, Inc. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick wishes to apply to the Department of Economic and Community 
Development (“DECD”) for a Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) to carry out a 
community development program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the planning process required by Maine Law and the CDBG Program have been 
complied with, including participation in the planning process by low and moderate income families 
and individuals and the community has conducted at least one duly advertised public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick is cognizant of the requirement that should the intended National 
Objective of the CDBG program not be met, all CDBG funds must be repaid to the State of Maine 
CDBG program; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Manager of the Town of Brunswick is 
authorized to: 
 
1) Submit an application for the following program(s) and dollar amount(s) within the State of Maine’s 

CDBG Program: 
 
Program: CDBG 2015 Economic Development Program   Amount: $350,000 
 
to the Department of Economic and Community Development on behalf of the Town of Brunswick, 
substantially in the form presented to this council; 

 
2) Make assurances on behalf of the Town of Brunswick as required as part of such applications, 

and 
 
3) Upon acceptance of said funds and any subsequent funds amendments to carry out the duties 

and responsibilities for implementing said program(s), consistent with the Charter of the Town of 
Brunswick and the laws and regulations governing planning and implementation of community 
development programs in the State of Maine. 

 
Date of Public Hearing: ________________ 
 
Adopted by Town Council: ________________           Municipal Seal 
 
 
NOTE: Attested copy of the Town Council April 16, 2015 Minutes with 
Resolution will be submitted to DECD-OCD by mid June 2015 
 

 Page 24 
 



Community Development Block Grant 
Economic Development Grant Program 

Impact, Development Strategy and Citizen Participation Sections 
 

PROBLEM STATEMENT SECTION 

Scope 
The closure of Naval Air Station Brunswick (NASB) represented one of the largest single 
employer relocations or closings in Maine’s history. Upon assessing the impact of NASB 
closure, the former Maine State Planning Office (SPO) revised the projected 2015 state gross 
state product downward by $390 million, cutting the projected growth rate from two to 
approximately one percent and estimated the total job loss at 6,500, of which 5,500 would be 
localized in the Brunswick Labor Market Area. The SPO also revised state population growth 
downward by 7,400, as a result of NASB closure. State personal income was also reduced by 
$370 million, with State of Maine revenue projections reduced by some $20 million. The 
closure of NASB also negatively impacts the Town of Brunswick’s financial viability by 
depressing property values, as a result of military, federal civilian employees and their families 
departing the area, leaving behind vacant homes and rental units. Moreover, the Brunswick 
School District has experienced the loss of over $1 million in annual federal transfer payments. 

In the aftermath of NASB closure, job creation is the most pressing need for Brunswick and the 
Midcoast region. With assets including 3,300 acres of prime commercial real estate, over 2 
million square feet of commercial and industrial space, a world-class aviation complex and the 
presence of higher education institutions, including Southern Maine Community College’s new 
Midcoast Campus, the University of Maine and Bowdoin College, Brunswick Landing, formerly 
NASB, is well-positioned to become Maine’s premier technology business park. It has attracted 
more than 60 companies, employing over 600 jobs, and generating a total of $65 million in new 
taxable property.  

But the challenge facing Brunswick is to continue to create employment and business 
opportunities through the redevelopment of Brunswick Landing and a continued strong 
business presence in its downtown area. The $65 million in new taxable property generates 
$1.8 million in property tax revenues, of which the Town captures 50% or $900,000. This 
represents half of the tax revenues that the Town of Brunswick collected before the Base 
closure. Therefore, new development activities in other sections of the community, in addition 
to the solid growth at Brunswick Landing, are key to its long-term economic well-being. 

Impact 
The economic impact of NASB closure has been compounded by job losses due to the “great 
recession” and the ensuing weak national recovery. The 2014 average annual unemployment 
rate for the Brunswick LMA was 4.6% (or 1,580 unemployed individuals), up from 4.3% (or 
1,390 unemployed) in 2005, when the base closure was announced. Since 2005 the 
unemployment rate in Brunswick, Maine has ranged from 3.6% in August 2005 to 8.3% in 
January 2010. The current unemployment rate for Brunswick in January 2015 was 4.2%, 
below the State of Maine’s rate of 5.9%, but still higher than 2000-2007 at an average of 3.6%. 

1 
 



With the closure of NASB, Brunswick and surrounding communities not only lost military and 
civilian jobs, the community and region have experienced a significant reduction in population, 
through the out-migration of over 3,000 military and federal civilian employees, as well as their 
families. As a result, local businesses, particularly those who serve the local market, have 
been faced with a smaller population of customers, as well as the loss of consumption 
associated with NASB’s $145 million annual payroll. Many of these small local businesses, 
including convenience stores, restaurants and dry cleaners, employed persons from low and 
moderate income households. These entry and middle level jobs are critical to sustain 
individuals and families in Brunswick. 
 
Need 
The Town of Brunswick faces significant fiscal challenges. Given the current pressure on local 
property taxes and diminished revenues from State Municipal Revenue Sharing, General 
Purpose Aid for school districts and excise taxes, towns are in a difficult position to leverage 
local resources to support economic development, when funding basic services is a challenge. 
Brunswick’s financial obligations are compounded by the need to integrate 3,300 new acres 
into the community and provide municipal services and utilities to Brunswick Landing 
businesses.  

The CDBG Economic Development Program funds are needed as gap financing to facilitate 
the expansion of Gelato Fiasco, Inc. into additional production space at 2-4 Industry Road in 
Brunswick. Since its start in 2007, Gelato Fiasco’s business growth has been extremely 
successful. Gelato Fiasco was founded in 2007 by Bruno Tropeano and Joshua Davis on 
Maine Street in Brunswick, Maine. Word about the shop spread across Maine as customers 
were wowed by the combination of a unique in-store experience and a huge presentation of 
creative flavors of gelato made daily using only the best ingredients, such as whole milk and 
cream from Maine dairies, natural cane sugar, and real fruit and nuts. By 2009, the company 
began its wholesale business by calling on area grocery stores and markets and making 
deliveries in coolers from the back of a small truck. In 2012, the company opened its second 
location in Portland’s Old Port, further increasing the company’s presence with visitors to 
Portland, Maine. Word about the company was spreading faster, and by the summer of 2012, 
the wholesale business had expanded to serve customers across Maine and New England. It 
was decided that the space in the kitchen at the Brunswick store was too small to handle it all 
and the company needed more room to grow. In 2013, the company purchased a parcel of 
buildings and land at 2/4 Industry Road in Brunswick to relocate all its wholesale business 
under one roof and expand production to meet pent-up demand. 

Within twelve months of its new Flavor Foundry being opened, Gelato Fiasco secured 
distribution deals that brought pints to 46 states and to major retailers like Kroger, Giant Eagle, 
and Whole Foods. With sales projected to pass $5.6 million in 2015, the company expects to 
reach the current maximum capacity of its Industry Road production plant this year. Until a 
suitable expansion plan is in place, Gelato Fiasco is turning away business and risking the 
possibility of losing existing business. 

Gelato Fiasco’s aggressive growth has also created cash flow difficulties such as many 
expanding businesses face. Gelato Fiasco approached the Brunswick Development 

2 
 



Corporation in 2013 to assist in its purchase of the 2-4 Industry Road production location, and 
was awarded a loan with a forgiveness clause based on job creation, which it has already 
satisfied.  As outlined above, it has expanded from one retail location in Brunswick to a second 
location in Portland. The opportunities to distribute to major retailers like Kroger, Giant Eagle 
and Whole Foods has fueled remarkable business growth opportunity, but the increased 
demand pressures to provide product has required the company to increase its production 
dramatically.  

Gelato Fiasco will invest significantly in its 2-4 Industry Road facility Street facility to move past 
the production capacity limit it is facing this year and continue its growth in to the future. This 
investment, plus operating capital requirements, will place financial demands on the company 
beyond their available capital and beyond traditional financing parameters. Traditional 
financing of the entire project would incur debt beyond the company’s ability to sustain. Private 
investment is available, but only for a portion of the total. A gap of $350,000 currently exists to 
support the overall project. If the CDBG funds are not available, the company will have to delay 
construction and/or incrementally purchase crucial equipment which will significantly slow their 
capacity increase, delaying production response, reducing timely revenue and severely limiting 
employment opportunities. 

SOLUTION SECTION 
 
Project Description 
Gelato Fiasco operates in multiple channels. The retail channels are operating stores at 74 
Maine Street, Brunswick, Maine and 425 Fore Street, Portland, Maine. The wholesale channel 
is based at 2-4 Industry Road, Brunswick, Maine and distributes to 46 states. The company 
operates a small food service division as part of its wholesale business that services 
restaurants and scoop shops across Maine. The company also operates a catering business 
that services weddings and events across Maine. All operations and all production are 
headquartered at 2 Industry Road, off Water Street which is located on the west side of 
Brunswick near the Androscoggin River. 
 
The Flavor Foundry facility at 2 Industry Road was renovated in 2013 to manufacture 
approximately $5.6 million in wholesale sales at maximum capacity. The space includes two 
separate buildings totaling approximately 6,200 square feet occupying 1.1 acres of land. 
Manufacturing activities take place in the renovated building at 2 Industry while the building at 
4 Industry Road serves mostly as storage for packaging and sticking operations. Gelato Fiasco 
is proposing building a 28 x 112’ addition to the space it currently owns at 2 Industry Road and 
modifying the existing use of some interior space to increase the building’s efficiency and work 
flow. The additional space is intended to increase capacity to a projected annual output of 
$17.00 million in sales, from the current year’s sales of $5.6 million, by eliminating existing 
bottlenecks of base production and raw material storage. The plant’s capacity is based on a 
production schedule of 24 shifts per month over twelve months per year. 
 
The primary goal of the expansion plan is to immediately address existing production 
bottlenecks to meet current production requirements under a budget not to exceed $1.44 
million. The storage of raw materials on-site and lack of large-scale base production is a major 

3 
 



limitation in daily production. These production problems would be immediately addressed with 
this expansion. The expansion would also improve work flow by providing a dedicated 
receiving area. Currently, receiving and shipping occupy the same small place which creates a 
logistical and operational bottleneck. The intention is to get the space operational quickly and 
under budget. 
 
Gelato Fiasco has retained the Dennis Group of Springfield, MA, a firm that specializes in food 
processing plant design and construction, to complete the project as a design/build project with 
a total budget not to exceed $1.40 million, which includes renovations, equipment and building 
improvements and contingencies. Gelato Fiasco is requesting $350,000 in CDBG financing, 
private investors will commit a total of $940,000, and the owners have committed $150,000 of 
equity to the project. These funds will support a 3,136 two story expansion bringing the total 
facility to approximately 12,500 square feet. Building construction costs are estimated at 
$935,000 and new equipment costs are estimated at $505,000 (or, a total project cost of 
$1,440,000 million). Gelato Fiasco will hire a minimum of fifteen (15) new employees within the 
next year. 
  
Gelato Fiasco will use the private funds to finance all of the construction activities while CDBG 
funds will support the majority of the commercial kitchen production equipment purchases. 
Owner equity will be used to supplement equipment and construction costs, as necessary. The 
equipment will assure that the company can meet the aggressive roll-out schedule that its 
existing and pending regional and national product demands require and sustain the demand 
generated by the two Maine operating stores. As stated above, the project will generate fifteen 
(15) new jobs, at least eight (8) of which will be taken by persons of low/moderate income. 
These individuals will be recruited by collaborating with the local CareerCenter and Goodwill 
offices. 
 
Effect on Assisted Business  
Gelato Fiasco need for funding is urgent, as it must have its new food production system in 
place by mid summer 2015 in order to support the demand from its two operating stores and 
its distribution commitments for 46 states through Kroger, Eagle Giant and Whole Foods. The 
current production facility has a maximum production capacity of $5.6m over the course of 24 
hours of production. With projected revenue to exceed that number by the end of 2015, the 
company will need to increase production in order to keep current customers happy and to 
continue to expand. 
 
Gelato has recently become more widely known and demanded by the American consumer. Its 
growth has been fueled by widespread demand for the craft segment of the ice cream market, 
particularly for gelato from mainstream consumers - moving gelato and other premium frozen 
desserts from the specialty food store to the everyday grocery store chains. If this trend ends, 
or consumers opt for healthier food generally, Gelato’s sales might decline. However, the 
company believes that there will always be room for a premium, delicious product in the 
marketplace; it just needs to maintain its position as a leading product in the ice cream aisle. 
 
Similarly, as Gelato Fiasco expands into larger chains, it may come under more pressure to 
lower prices or offer promotional deals that would reduce its margins in order to retain market 

4 
 



share. Maintaining price discipline and offering alternatives to promo discounts like in-store 
demos will be important to maintain. 

Gelato’s product is unique and the company has demonstrated its ability to bring that product 
to a diverse market. Any compromise in quality or availability could damage its reputation. 
Thus, CDBG funding is critical to the company’s plans to execute existing commitments and 
secure future new opportunities, which will provide return on the CDBG investment. Increased 
sales and revenues and sustainable employment will be immediate. The expanded facility 
creates production efficiencies and an increased commercial scale capable delivering superior 
product in a timely and cost effective manner. The company is working with the Dennis Group 
to streamline and enhance its production and delivery set-up. This expansion facilitates 
effective production, improves employee efficiencies, and streamlines delivery loading and 
distribution.  

Project Timeline and Feasibility   
Gelato Fiasco brings a strong mix of management and product excellence to this project. 
 

• A special concept. Its gelato and sorbetto is truly delicious. That’s because of the 
whole premium ingredients, made-from-scratch recipes, and important production 
quality standards. But, the company is also known for a lot of other special things that 
make it stand out: its ingredient standards; diverse flavor varieties; caring, fun and 
attentive employees; unlimited samples to customers in the stores, and unlimited flavors 
in any dish at no extra charge; and, high level of customer engagement. The variety of 
flavors, quality of the gelato, attention of the staff, and sophisticated indoor design 
provide an elevated and special experience. Gelato Fiasco is “Made the Maine Way”.  

• A respected high-end brand that has a reputation for quality. The company has 
received a large amount of press and accolades for the quality of its products. Its online 
reviews are practically flawless. Gelato Fiasco is respected for offering a high quality 
product with good service. This has allowed the company to maintain price discipline at 
a premium price point and still gain market share. 

• Strong, cohesive branding across multiple digital platforms and customer 
experiences. Emphasis on key brand attributes are clearly communicated to customers 
across all of their possible interactions with the brand i.e. language that states a key 
principle of the company choosing to source dairy only from Maine farms is on all 
packaging, posted in stores, featured online and repeated regularly in social media. 
Similar principles are similarly broadcasted across channels as appropriate. 

• Strong customer support and advocacy. The brand has generated loyalty from 
customers that evangelize and generate business through word-of-mouth. The business 
generates genuine excitement and instills passion. Customers have become 
employees, investors, board members and all advocate strongly in the company’s favor. 

• Customer-first orientated employees. The company has retained lots of long-term 
frontline employees. The company’s employee retention rate is much higher than 
industry average. Management truly attempts to take care of its employees so the 
employees will be happy and take care of customers.  

• Established distribution. Relationships with distributors are the key to reaching more 
customers. Until 2014, the company did not have any significant relationships with 

5 
 



distributors. Now those distribution arrangements are in place allowing the company to 
sell to more customers.  

• Reputation for a winning brand. Gelato Fiasco has a lot of momentum in the eyes of 
buyers and customers. Buyers are glad to have the opportunity to finally carry the 
product, which sells as quickly as it is placed on the shelf. 

• Financial Capacity. The company has a strong base of investors and owners who 
have demonstrated multiple times their ability and commitment to financially backstop 
the company though loans and investments. The company can reliably call on these 
investors to help it take advantage of opportunities as they present themselves. 

The company has determined that its best option for expansion in Brunswick is in its present 
location. It has secured the services of the Dennis Group of Springfield, MA, a firm that 
specializes in food processing plant design and construction, to complete the project as a 
design/build project with a total budget not to exceed $1.4 million, which includes renovations, 
equipment and building improvements and contingencies. 

DATE ACTIVITY 
March 2015 Retain facility & production design firm  
April 2015 Secure private financing 
May  Obtain permits / get preliminary facility expansion design 
June Start construction 
July Construction continues / recruiting new hires begins 
August Construction ends / facility opens 

 
 
3. Citizen Participation 
The Town of Brunswick has had several Community Development Grant program applications 
in the past year and through the Town Council review and Public Hearing process, there has 
been general discussion about the programs in addition to the examination of the specific 
projects submitted to the Economic Development and MicroEnterprise programs. The Town’s 
Department of Economic and Community Development staff has had several calls and visits 
from citizens to explore the intent and accountability of the programs. In general, both the 
Council members and general public have responded positively to opportunities that the 
programs offer Brunswick businesses. Citizens were involved in the development of this 
application through the formal Council agenda on March 2, 2015 requesting submittal of the 
CDBG Letter of Intent, again on March 16, 2015 requesting the posting of a Public Hearing, 
and through their participation in the April 16, 2015 public hearing. The public hearing minutes 
and Town Council Resolution are attached. A public hearing notice was published in the April 
6, 2015 edition of the Times Record. 

6 
 



ITEM 38  
BACK-UP 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-1583 

 
 

 
TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Brunswick Town Council  

FROM:  Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 

RE:  Frosty’s Donuts, LLC Request for a CDBG Contract Amendment  

DATE:  April 8, 2015 

On May 29, 2014, the Brunswick Town Council approved the Town Manager moving forward 
with a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Economic Development Program grant 
application to the Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) on behalf of 
Frosty’s Donuts, LLC for leasehold improvement and equipment purchases at 119 Orion Street 
on the Brunswick Landing. Since the Town Council’s approval, DECD approved the $160,050 
contract with the Town on behalf of Frosty’s Donuts, LLC. Frosty’s has been working on their 
production facility since early June 2014. 

In early March 2015, DECD staff came to monitor the Frosty’s Donuts, LLC CDBG grant. The 
DECD staff person, Ms. Andrea Smith, reviewed Town and company finance and program 
records and visited the new production site, at 119 Orion Street, where the CDBG funds were 
invested. In the course of her monitoring activities, she became aware of the cross training 
efforts that the company was developing for its employees. Training is an activity that CDBG 
funds can support. Ms. Smith asked Frosty’s to prepare a proposal for training activities and 
subsequently was able to offer a $100,000 contract amendment to support the company’s 
training efforts. Details on the proposed training and budget request are attached.   

In addition, the monitoring visit verified that Frosty’s had satisfied its job creation requirements 
for the initial contract, which committed Frosty’s to filling 7 full time equivalent positions with 
employees who were low to moderate income (LMI) individuals. The training funds also have an 
LMI requirement, which Frosty’s is in the process of documenting.   

DECD is extremely pleased with the outcomes of the first phase of the contract and anticipates 
equally high performance with the second phase. I hope you will support the Resolution 
approving Frosty’s request for these additional CDBG funds. Ms. Stacey Durrell, Frosty’s 
Operations Manager, will be available to answer any questions on April 16, 2015 as the owners, 
Shelby and Nels Omdal, regret they cannot be available. 

 
Attachments/ 
Cc: John Eldridge, Town Manager 
       Shelby & Nels Omdal and Stacey Durrell, Frosty’s Donuts, LLC  

www.brunswickme.org 
 



TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
A Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance and Expenditure of Community Development Block 

Grant Funds for Projects to be Undertaken by Frosty’s Donuts, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick applied to the Maine Department of Economic and Community 
Development (“DECD”) for a Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) to carry out an 
economic development program; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 29, 2014 the Town Council approved a CDBG application and the Town was 
subsequently awarded a 2014 Economic Development Program grant of $160,050 (the “Grant”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town subsequently awarded the Grant to Frosty’s Donuts, LLC (“Sub-recipient”); and 
 
WHEREAS, DECD has approved an amendment of the Grant to award an additional $100,000 to 
accommodate Frosty’s Donuts, LLC requests for workforce development training;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Town Council amends the authorization contained in its 
May 29, 2014 Resolution to increase the Grant amount to $260,050; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the new Grant amount of $260,050 shall be expended substantially 
in accordance with Frosty’s amended proposal and budget addressing workforce development activities as 
submitted to the Town Council; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town Manager is authorized to execute Grant contract 
amendments with DECD and Frosty’s Donuts, LLC and other documents the Town Manager deems 
necessary in connection with the Grant; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the all other authority contained in the May 29, 2014 Resolution 
remains in force; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any actions already taken by the Town are ratified, confirmed and 
approved. 
 
 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council:   April 16, 2015 
Adopted by Town Council  
 
 



Frosty’s Donuts, LLC 
Production Cross Training Program 

 

 

Donut Finisher - Level 1 
(DF1) 

Finish & Tray Donuts 

Donut Finisher - Level 1 (DF2) 
DF1 and follow recipes to make 

frostings & glazes 

Assistant Cake Baker - Level 1 
(ACB1) 

All DF2 and measure & mix 
bake batter 

Assistant Cake Baker - Level 
2 (ACB2) 

ACB2 and frying donuts 

Cake Baker 
ACB2 and manage shift 

production and be shift lead  

Assistant Dough Baker - Level 1 
(ADB1) 

All DF2 and twist & fry raised 
dough 

Assistant Dough Baker - Level 2 
(ADB2) 

All ADB1 plus follow recipes to 
make raised dough batch & make 

cinnamon rolls and fritters 

Dough Cutter/Baker 
All ADB2 plus manage shift 
production, cut dough & be 

shift lead  

Each progressive stage will result in an increase in wage. 






	Agenda - April 16, 2015 special
	37 yes
	37 Memo to Town Council for GF CDBG Public Hearing (4-8-2015)
	37 COUNCIL RESOLUTION for Gelato Fiasco (DRAFT for 4-16-2015)
	37 Gelato Fiasco CDBG App (REDACTED 4-8-2015)
	COMMUNITY BENEFIT WORKSHEET
	Consumer Credit Authorization

	37 Problem Statement at al (DRAFT 4-6-2015)
	38 yes
	38 1 Memo to Town Council re Frosty's CDBG Contract Amendment (4-8-2015)
	38 2 CDBG Grant Resolution - Frosty's (for 4-16-2015)
	38 Cross Training - Production Flow (3-31-2015)
	38 Cross-Training - Target Employees, Duration & Costs - Redacted (4-8-2015)
	38 DECD - Frosty's Job Creation Letter (3-31-2015)

